ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 4, 2011
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA - TEACHER PREPAREDNESS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

DEBORAH LO, Dean

Col | ege of Education

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast (UAS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions  of the committee
regardi ng UAS' teacher education program and preparedness.

MARY SNYDER, Dean

Col | ege of Education

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions  of the conmmttee
regardi ng UAA s teacher education program and preparedness.

ERI C MADSEN, Dean

Col | ege of Education

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)
Fai r banks, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2011



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions  of the commttee
regardi ng UAF' s teacher education program and preparedness.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:.04:35 AM

COCHAIR JCE THOVAS <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Senators Davis, Stevens,
Co- Chair Meyer, and Co-Chair Thomas were present at the call to
order. Senator French arrived shortly thereafter.

PRESENTATI ON: _ UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA - TEACHER PREPAREDNESS

8. 04: 54 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS announced the business before the conmmttee
would be to hear a presentation by the three deans of the
University of Alaska (UA) on teacher preparedness. He rem nded
the committee of SB 83, which dealt wth national teacher
certification [though the National Board for Professional
Teachi ng Standards (NBPTS)]. He said that the commttee nenbers
want to hear from the deans regarding how the colleges are
addr essi ng teacher preparedness.

8:06: 31 AM

DEBORAH LO, Dean, College of Education, University of Al aska
Sout heast (UAS), said she arrived in Alaska in July and has
found UAS  education faculty to be very hard-wrking and
dedi cated. She explained that what nakes the program unique is
that the program it taken out of Juneau and serves students
where they are through distance education. For exanple, one
faculty nenber spent three nights on a gym floor in order to
serve the needs of a special education teacher in a rural
comunity. The program is NCATE [ National Counci | for
Accreditation of Teacher Education] approved and UAS w |l have
another wvisit in October. She noted that the prograns are
aligned with all of the NCATE, state and national board
standards. The pass rates on the Praxis exam | and Il are very
good and better than the other institutions that she came from

8: 08: 48 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said one of the issues that the Joint Higher
Educati on Task Force has discussed is the Praxis exam He asked
for perspective on whether this exam works as a determ ning
factor to decide who will be a good teacher.

M5. LO replied that the Praxis exam is the best neasure
avai l able. She explained that Praxis | neasures general

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2011



knowl edge and Praxis |l ensures that potential teachers are
prepared to teach this body of know edge. She said that she
believes it works fairly well.

SENATOR STEVENS said the task force heard nunerous conplaints,
particularly about Praxis |. He asked if there is a cultural
factor that plays into this.

M5. LO replied that this has been an issue all over the country,
not just in Alaska. Individuals aren't happy when they're told
that they need renediation. However, the primary obligation, as
a school of education, is to the children of Al aska and teachers
that do not have good content know edge can't be placed into
school s.

SENATOR STEVENS thanked Ms. Lo for her response. He noted that
this issue needs further review

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked Ms. Lo to think about whether a process
should be put into place for individuals entering the program
that would give them a better idea of what teaching is going to
be like. He wondered if there is an evaluation process that is
done to determine whether an individual has the propensity
towards this career path.

8:12:11 AM

MARY SNYDER, Dean, College of Education, University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA), said students are being introduced to a |ot of
their education coursework and field experiences earlier on in
their education. This allows faculty nenbers to observe teacher
candidates in a nunber of areas early-on in order to identify
students who mght have sone issues wthin the field. The
university has added a retention officer to help students and
counsel them if needed, out of the program if they won't be
suitable as a teacher.

She agreed that the Praxis exans aren't necessarily an accurate
predi ctor of how a teacher will do. She noted that UAA is also
NCATE accredited and did exceptionally well during NCATE s visit
| ast spring. Sixty-two percent of the courses that UAA provides
are offered through distance education and seven percent of its
prograns are 100 percent distant. She said that the College of
Education is looking to nmke 100 percent of its prograns
avai l abl e through distance education wthin the next three
years.

8:14:54 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2011



ERI C MADSEN, Dean, College of Education, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks (UAF), said the university has been heavily involved
with rural education prograns for the past 40 years. He
expl ained that there used to be faculty on the rural canpuses;
however, as the nunber of students in those prograns declined,
along with the increase in technology, it mde nore sense to
conduct the prograns from Fairbanks.

He explained that, wth regard to the Praxis exanms, the
di screpancies in scores are related to how recently a student
underwent training. Students who have prepared recently have
very few probl ens.

He said that when students enter the program rigorous screening
is involved that includes what students want to do and the
skills that they bring with them He added that there is also a
practi cum experience very early on in order to determ ne whet her
this is what the student wants to do | ong-term

8:.17:34 AM

SENATOR STEVENS commented that an effort is being nade to bring
nore Native individuals into education. He asked if there are
ways that UAF is working with students so they don't have to
spend so much tinme on canpus.

MR. MADSEN replied that all of its prograns are available to
students in the rural communities where they live and work
t hrough distance education. He noted that during the program
there may be short periods of tine when a student needs to be on
canpus.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if UAF is developing a cadre of teachers
fromthat programthat is worth pursuing.

MR. MADSEN replied that it is working very well in regards to
the preparation that students receive. He noted that one thing
that has changed over the past few decades is students in even
the smallest comunities have a wde array of professional
options that they can pursue. This neans that it makes it very
difficult to attract these individuals to public education.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked him to comment on how recruiting is done
and how teachers are encouraged to return to their villages to
teach after receiving their education

MR, MADSEN replied that the nunber of students from rural
communities who are pursuing education is declining. However

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2011



much of this has to do with the status of the profession. Public
education is not a high-status profession; this can be seen
through salary discrepancies and working conditions. The one
thing that would attract rural teachers and teachers in genera
woul d be to address teacher sal aries and benefits.

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked whet her nore nentoring would be hel pful in
rural areas in receiving a broader spectrum of pursuits and
pr of essi ons.

MR. MADSEN replied yes. He noted that it does create sone
addi ti onal chal |l enges.

COCHAIR THOMAS noted, wth regard to the teacher education
program individuals spend a year in an unpaid internship. He
said that this is a bit unusual and asked for confirmtion that
this internship is considered a part of the educational aspect.

MR. MADSEN replied that in one sense students are in the
cl assroom fulltinme, however a majority of these individuals are
not fulfilling the fulltime duties of a teacher; they are
wor ki ng under the gui dance of a nmaster teacher.

8:23:23 AM
M5. SNYDER added that UAA' s students experience at |east two
school s during their year's experience in the classroom

M5. LO noted that at UAS nost individuals are in unpaid
internships. The exception to this wuld be wth special
educati on because many of these individuals are already teachers
who are being trained for this specialization while teaching.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked if students get to pick the school for
their internship or if they' re assigned.

IVB. LO replied that students often choose the school
particularly rural students. In special education, because there
is such a critical shortage area in Alaska, teachers are
frequently hired fromthe Lower 48 and receive their specialized
trai ning while teaching.

MR. MADSEN agreed with Ms. Lo that students will ask to work in
a particular community or school. However, it is not always the
students' choice; this negotiation process nust take place under
the supervision of a faculty nenber. He said it is nost
inmportant that an intern is working with a nmentor teacher who is
going to be able to help them

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2011



8:25:40 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER said there's a huge demand for teachers in the
state and it is troubling to have to recruit teachers from the
Lower 48 because frequently they don't last due to culture
shock. He asked how close UA is to neeting the demand for
teachers through the three canpuses. He then asked how UA gets
the teachers in the state to pursue areas in the highest demand,
such as special education.

M5. SNYDER replied that in 2010 all three universities graduated
alittle over 200 teachers, which is about one-fourth of what's
needed i n Al aska.

MR. MADSEN noted that in recent years they have |earned that
teachers who prepare in the state tend to stay longer in their
positions. He explained that while at this point UA can't equate
that with student achievenment, teachers who have been in a
position longer and have a greater depth of experience work
better with their students. He said that getting teachers to
take positions where they' re nost needed does not always happen
by choice and teachers with experience need to be offered sone
incentives to consider those positions.

M5. SNYDER said that one initiative UAA has is the existence of
some private funding to take 15 paraprofessionals enrolled in
the elenentary education program out to Chevak. The university
sends a faculty nenber out there and the rest of the instruction
is done through distance support. She explained that their
anticipation is that this cohort of students who are all Chup'ik
and Chup'ik speakers w |l becone teachers in that area. UAA
believes that this can be successful in other areas and Barrow
has approached the university about using this sane nodel.

MR. MADSEN concurred. UAF has 63 elenentary and secondary
interns in 18 communities, with only four located in the five
| argest comunities in the state. The other 14 communities
i nclude very renote places and sonme of the regional centers.

8: 30: 35 AM

M5. LO said that UAS has the P.I.T.A A S. [Preparing Indigenous
Teachers and Adm nistrators for Alaska Schools] program which
heavily recruits rural and Native students. UAS is currently
designing the only undergraduate special education program in
the state. She stressed the inportance in training students
early.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2011



CO CHAI R MEYER asked what can be done to cone closer to neeting
the demand for teachers in Al aska. He suggested that perhaps a
schol arship should be offered to students to encourage them to
go into teaching.

M5. LO replied that UAS has 13 faculty nenbers in the coll ege of
education and produces about 90 teachers every year. She said
that the college is currently at capacity and nore faculty would
allow the college to produce nore teachers. She acknow edged
that incentives to go into education wuld al so hel p.

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked, wth additional faculty, whether the
university could graduate nore teachers. He noted that it
appears UAS is graduating about half of the systemis teachers
currently.

M5. LO replied yes. She noted that UAS College of Education
would like to produce nore teachers and could do so with nore
facul ty.

8:33:17 AM
MR. MADSEN said incentives could be wuseful wth regard to
encouraging students to choose a specific discipline wthin

education and age |evel. However, in order to get people into
the profession, scholarships and |oan forgiveness prograns
shoul d be considered. UAF, like UAS, is now running at capacity.

To address the 25 percent needed increase in a neaningful way
requires | ooking at the capacity of the UA education system

M5. SNYDER concurred, increasing the faculty capacity and
incentives for students to pursue education would be hel pful.
However, UA w Il never be able to fulfill 2100 percent of the

teacher demand due to the popul ation base that UA is working off
of .

SENATOR FRENCH expressed hope that the university president and
the UA Board of Regents would bring forward proposals for adding
facul ty.

He asked how to nmeasure teacher effectiveness and what can be
done to pronote that nore.

M5. LO replied that UAS evaluates students starting from the
time they enter the school. She noted that disposition is an
inportant factor and occasionally a student nust be dism ssed
from the program She noted that the wuniversity's primary

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2011



obligation is to the children in schools, not the adults in the
program

M5. SNYDER added that at UAA candidates are evaluated by an
i ndependent clinical faculty nenber or regular faculty nenber
from the university. There is also a lot of input from the
student's "nmentor teacher” and the principal in the building.
Students are then evaluated at one, three, and five years out
once they are in the field.

MR. MADSEN not ed that UAF does the same. However, the topic many
are reluctant to address is student achievenent, which is,
ultimately, the success for a professional. NCLB [No Child Left
Behi nd] was neasuring the progress of one cohort of students
agai nst a conpl etely di fferent cohort of st udent s.
Under st andabl y, educators are reluctant to be neasured under
this basis, which adds sonme serious questions. The profession,
in general, is willing to be accountable if the discussion is
focused on the neasure that indicates what an individual teacher
contributes to the classroomand to individual students.

8:38: 29 AM

SENATOR STEVENS noted that his daughter cane to Juneau for the
MAT [Master of Arts in Teaching] program Each of the canpuses
appears to have a different approach and attract different types
of students. He asked how the three canpuses differ from each
ot her.

M5. LO replied that UAS is different in its responsiveness to
students. She said that sonetines it concerns her that "they
hold their hands too much;" however, students have indicated
that this responsiveness is val uable.

SENATOR STEVENS noted, from personal experience, that there is a
ot of diversity between the three canpuses' education program
and the students that each of the progranms attract. He asked how
the students that UAS attracts mght be different than those who
m ght be interested to UAF' s or UAA's program

M5. LO replied that a majority of UAS students want to receive
their training in their comunity. There are only two prograns
that are Juneau-based; everything else can be done through
di st ance | ear ni ng.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about UAF's population of students
pur sui ng educati on.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2011



MR. MADSEN replied that the three prograns have changed in
dynam c ways. UAF is no longer the only canpus that does rura
education. Now the wuniversity |ooks at where it would be
beneficial to collaborate with the other canpuses. On an annua
basis UAF |ooks at where it can branch out and not duplicate
prograns. He noted that this has been a constructive process.

8:42: 49 AM
CO-CHAIR THOVAS nentioned the National Board for Professional
Teachi ng St andar ds certification. In t he commttee's

understanding the process for «certification is a rigorous
process, perhaps nore so than getting a nmaster's degree. He
asked the deans to coment on how they view this certification.

M5. SNYDER replied that UAA has just revised the naster's
program so that it is based on board standards and students w ||
be well-prepared to get board certified.

M5. LO concurred that it's inportant to give students these
options and fully aligned progranms. However, national board
certification is a rigorous and time-consumng process and is
not for everyone.

MR. MADSEN said that the national board process has been
positive for Al aska and the nation. He noted that about 20 to 25
graduates at UAF have obtained national board certification. He
explained that he is reluctant about national certification
standards and does not believe it would be helpful to have
teacher training nationw de | ook exactly the sane.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said NBPTS recognizes the difference between
rural and urban and different ethnic groups. He asked how
schools specifically address this in Alaska. He noted that a
Native | eader recently indicated that boarding schools mght be
hel pful for rural and Native student popul ati ons.

8:47:21 AM

MR. MADSEN replied that collaboration speaks to this and UA
recogni zes that schools |ook different across the state. He
explained that it is inportant to be in touch with these schools
on a constant basis in order to recognize and respond to these
di fferences.

M5. SNYDER said, wth respect to the boarding or hub school
idea, there are very few high-quality courses that cannot be
taught effectively through technology for K-12 students. She
expl ained that rather than pull nore children out of villages,

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2011



it is inmportant to look to technology. The course work is
avai l able; there just need to be better ways to deliver that
content in villages so the teacher becones nore facilitative.

M5. LO agreed with Ms. Snyder. She encouraged the conmttee to
t hink about the research by [James] Heckman, which won him the
Nobel Prize, who said that early childhood education wll
produce the "nost bang for vyour buck.” This needs to be
addressed rigorously in Al aska.

MB. SNYDER concurred.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked, with regard to rural schools, what kind
of an education a teacher needs in order to teach such a broad
curriculum from ki ndergarten through high school

M5. LO replied that, in this type of situation, a teacher is
also a facilitator who can get the resources for their student
and facilitate the process of |earning. She noted that a teacher
can't be an expert in all areas; however they need to know where
the resources are and meke sure students are exposed to the
i nformation and cour ses.

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked if that is effective for the | ower grades.

M5. LOreplied that it is like gifted education. The teacher may
not be gifted but they can facilitate to nmake sure that students
get the necessary information needed. This is the sane wthin
smal | vill ages.

MR. MADSEN said it's easier for a small group of individuals to
have the necessary content expertise to teach the subjects
required at the elenentary level. He explained that distance
education strategi es become nore useful at the secondary |evel
He suggested that short-term intensives at regional centers may
al so be helpful and don't require students to be away from hone
too nuch. There are real costs to pulling students away from
their famlies and comuniti es.

M5. SNYDER agreed with M. Midsen with regard to elenentary
education. She explained that wthin secondary school it is
inportant to look into broad liberal arts preparation.

8:54:18 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS thanked the presenters and suggested the deans
forward any further coments to the commttee for consideration.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2011



SENATOR STEVENS asked if the committee would be able to neet
with the university to discuss the Fisher Report.

CO CHAIR THOVAS suggested that the conmmttee neet during the
interimto hear this report.

SENATOR STEVENS said hearing the university's response would be
val uabl e.

8:57:26 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Co- Chair Thomas adjourned the neeting at 8:57 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2011



